## ORIGINAL

1		
2	IN THE SUPREME COUR	<b>F OF THE STATE OF NEVADA</b>
3		
4	*	* *
5		
6	SIAOSI VANISI,	Case No. 50607
7	Appellant,	DEATH PENALTY CASE
8	VS.	DEATHTEMALITCHOL
9	THE STATE OF NEVADA,	FILED
10 11	Respondent.	AUG 2 2 2008
11		TRACIE K. LINDEMAN CLERK OF SUPREME COURT
12	APPELLANT'S	BY SY DEPUTY CLEAR
13		
14		
15	Appeal from Denial of Post-Conviction	Habeas Petition, Second Judicial Dist. Ct.,
10	The Honorable Connie J. Steinheime	er, Dept. 4, Dist. Ct. Case No. CR98P0516.
18		
19		
20		
21	SCOTT W. EDWARDS, ESQ.	RICHARD GAMMICK, ESQ. Washoe County District Attorney
22	State Bar No. 3400 729 Evans Ave., Reno, Nevada 89512	TERRENCE McCARTHY

16	Cf. Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)62
17 18	Chapman v. California, 386 U.S. 18, 17 L. Ed. 2d 705, 87 S. Ct. 824 (1967) 31, 41 - 42
19	Coker v. Georgia, 433 U.S. 917 (1977) 56, 59
20	Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands v. Bowie, 236 F.3d 1109 (9 <sup>th</sup> Cir.2001)
21	Cooper v. Morin, 49 N.Y.2d 69 (1979) 69
22	Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335, 100 S.Ct. 1708, 64 L.Ed.2d 333 (1980) 35, 39
23	
24	Daniels v. Williams, 474 U.S. 327 (1986)
25	Delo v. Kenley, 502 U.S. 964, 112 S.Ct. 431, 116 L.Ed.2d 450 (1991)
26	Delo v. Lashley, 507 U.S. 272 (1993) 60
27 28	Deutscher v. Angelone, 16 F.3d 981 (9th Cir.1994) 75

14 14	
1	Deutscher v. Whitley, 946 F.2d 1443 (9th Cir.1991)75
2	Enmund v. Florida, 458 U.S. 782 (1982) 59
3	Evans v. Lewis, 855 F.2d 631 (9th Cir.1988)75
4	Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806 (1975) 14, 26 - 28, 31, 32, 36, 76
6	Faulder v. Johnson, 81 F.3d 515 (Cir. 1996) 17
7	Flanagan v. United States, 465 U.S. 259, 104 S.Ct. 1051, 79 L.Ed.2d 288 (1984) 36
8	Ford v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 399 (1986) 56, 58 - 60
9	Fowler v. Collins, 253 F.3d 244 (6th Cir. 2001)
10 11	Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238, 33 L. Ed. 2d 346, 92 S. Ct. 2726 (1972) 20, 56, 59, 60, 62, 64, 65, 70, 71
12	Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349, 97 S.Ct. 1197, 51 L.Ed.2d 393 (1977)
13	Gideon v. Wainwright, 372 U.S. 335, 9 L. Ed. 2d 799, 83 S. Ct. 792 (1963)
14 15	Gilmore v. Utah, 429 U.S. 1012 (1976)
15	Glasser v. United States, 315 U.S. 60, 62 S.Ct. 457, 86 L.Ed. 680 (1942)
17	Godfrey v. Georgia, 466 U.S. at 440, 100 S.Ct. at 1770 24, 63, 70, 71
18 19	Gregg v. Georgia, 428 U.S. 153, 49 L. Ed. 2d 859, 96 S. Ct. 2909 (1976)
20	Griffin, 741 A.2d at 948
21	Grigsby v. Mabry, 569 F. Supp. 1273 (E.D. Ark. 1983)
22	Harmelin v. Michigan, 501 U.S. 957 (1991)
23	Herrera v. Collins, 506 U.S. 390 (1993) 58
24 25	Holloway v. Arkansas, 435 U.S. 475, 98 S.Ct. 1173, 55 L.Ed.2d 426 (1978) 35, 36, 39
26	Indiana v. Edwards,U.S, 128 S.Ct. 2379 (2008)
27	J.E.B. v. Alabama ex rel. T.B., 511 U.S. 127 (1994)
28	Johnson v. Mississippi, 486 U.S. 578 (1988)58
	- vii -

1	Keeten v. Garrison, 578 F. Supp. 1164, 742 F.2d 129 (4th Cir. 1984)
2	Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (C.A.8)
3	Lenhard v. Wolff, 444 U.S. 807 (1979)
5	Lockhart, 476 U.S. at 190-91 (1986) 67, 69
6	Martinez v. Court of Appeals, 528 U.S. 152 (2000)
7	Martinez-Villareal v. Stewart, 118 F.3d 628 (9th Cir. 1997)54
8	Medellin v. Texas, 552 U.S, (Case 06-984) (decided March 25, 2008) 13
9	Medina v. California, 505 U.S. 537 (1992)
10 11	Mempa v. Rhay, 389 U.S. 128, 88 S.Ct. 254, 19 L.Ed.2d 336 (1967)
12	Moore v. Morton, 255 F.3d 95 (3d Cir. 2001)
13	Morgan v. Illinois, 504 U.S. 719 (1992) 67
14	Ohio Adult Parole Auth. v. Woodard, 523 U.S. 272 (1998)
15	Penry v. Lynaugh, 492 U.S. 302 (1989) 60
16	Powers v. Ohio, 499 U.S. 400 (1991)
17 18	Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584 (2002) 23, 24
19	Robinson v. California, 370 U.S. 660, 8 L. Ed. 2d 758, 82 S. Ct. 1417 (1962) 20
20	Rochin v. California, 342 U.S. 165 (1952) 56
21	Rohan v. Woodford, 334 F.3d 803 (9th Cir. 2003)
22	Roper v. Simmons, 125 S. Ct. 1183, 543 U.S. 551 (2005)
23 24	Stanford v. Kentucky, 492 U.S. 361 (1989) 60
25	Stewart v. Martinez-Villareal, 523 U.S. 637, 118 S.Ct. 1618 (1998)54
26	Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984)
27	Thompson v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 1042, 107 S.Ct. 1986, 95 L.Ed.2d 825 (1987) 75
28	Thompson v. Wainwright, 787 F.2d 1447 (CA11 1986)

- H	
1	Tison v. Arizona, 481 U.S. 137 (1987) 59
2	Tumey v. Ohio, 273 U.S. 510 (1927) 55
3	U.S. v. Purnett, 910 F.2d 51 (2d Cir. 1990) 32
4	United States v. Bland, 961 F.2d 123 (9 <sup>th</sup> Cir. 1992) 19
6	United States v. Esparza-Ponce, 7 F. Supp. 2d 1084 (S.D. Cal. 1998) 17
7	Waldron v. INS, 17 F.3d 511 (2d Cir. 1994) 17
8	Weems v. United States, 217 U.S. at 381 61
9	Witherspoon v. Illinois, 391 U.S. 510 (1968)
10	Wolff v. McDonnell, 418 U.S. 539 (1974) 65
11 12	Wood v. Georgia, 450 U.S. 261, 271, 101 S.Ct. 1097, 67 L.Ed.2d 220 (1981)
12	Woodson v. North Carolina, 428 U.S. 280 (1976)
14	Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862, 77 L. Ed. 2d 235, 103 S. Ct. 2733 (1983) 20
15	State Cases:
16	State Cases:         Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)
16 17	
16 17 18	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)
16 17	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)
16 17 18 19	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40
16 17 18 19 20	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40         Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 846 P.2d 276 (1993)       35, 38 - 40
<ol> <li>16</li> <li>17</li> <li>18</li> <li>19</li> <li>20</li> <li>21</li> <li>22</li> <li>23</li> </ol>	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40         Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 846 P.2d 276 (1993)       35, 38 - 40         Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 575 P.2d 936 (1978)       75
<ol> <li>16</li> <li>17</li> <li>18</li> <li>19</li> <li>20</li> <li>21</li> <li>22</li> <li>23</li> <li>24</li> </ol>	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40         Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 846 P.2d 276 (1993)       35, 38 - 40         Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 575 P.2d 936 (1978)       75         Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 817 P.2d 1169 (1991)       37
<ol> <li>16</li> <li>17</li> <li>18</li> <li>19</li> <li>20</li> <li>21</li> <li>22</li> <li>23</li> <li>24</li> <li>25</li> </ol>	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40         Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 846 P.2d 276 (1993)       35, 38 - 40         Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 575 P.2d 936 (1978)       75         Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 817 P.2d 1169 (1991)       37         Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112 (1992)       37
<ol> <li>16</li> <li>17</li> <li>18</li> <li>19</li> <li>20</li> <li>21</li> <li>22</li> <li>23</li> <li>24</li> </ol>	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40         Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 846 P.2d 276 (1993)       35, 38 - 40         Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 575 P.2d 936 (1978)       75         Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 817 P.2d 1169 (1991)       37         Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112 (1992)       37         Doleman v. State, 112 Nev. 843, 921 P.2d 278 (1996)       38
<ol> <li>16</li> <li>17</li> <li>18</li> <li>19</li> <li>20</li> <li>21</li> <li>22</li> <li>23</li> <li>24</li> <li>25</li> <li>26</li> </ol>	Aesop v. State, 102 Nev. 316, 721 P.2d 379 (1986)       76         Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 92, 146 P.3d 265 (2006)       30         Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)       35, 40         Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 846 P.2d 276 (1993)       35, 38 - 40         Cunningham v. State, 94 Nev. 128, 575 P.2d 936 (1978)       75         Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 817 P.2d 1169 (1991)       37         Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112 (1992)       37         Doleman v. State, 112 Nev. 843, 921 P.2d 278 (1996)       38         Earl v. State, 111 Nev. 1304, 904 P.2d 1029 (1995)       76

- ix -

1	Haberstroh v. State, 109 Nev. 22 (1993)74	
2	Harvey v. State, 96 Nev. 850, 619 P.2d 1214 (1980)40	
3	Harvey v. State, 97 Nev. 477, 634 P.2d 1199 (1981)	
5	Jones v. State, 110 Nev. 730, 877 P.2d 1052 (Nev. 1994)	
6	Knorr v. State, 103 Nev. 604, 748 P.2d 1 (1987)	
7	Lay v. State, 110 Nev. 1189, 886 P.2d 448 (1994)	
8	Manley v. State, 115 Nev. 114, 979 P.2d 703 (1999)	
9	Mannon v. State, 98 Nev. 224, 645 P.2d 433 (1982)40	
10 11	McConnell v. State, 120 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 105, 102 P.3d 606 (2004)	
12	O'Guinn v. State, 118 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 85, 59 P.3d 488 (2002)	
13	People v. Kuntu, 196 Ill. 2 <sup>nd</sup> 105, 752 N.E. 2 <sup>nd</sup> 380 (Ill. 2001)	
14 15	People v. Madej, 2000 Ill. LEXIS 1215         15	
16	Pertgen v. State, 110 Nev. 554, 875 P.2d 36 (Nev. 1994)	
17	Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 878 P.2d 272 (1994)75	
18	Sanborn v. State, 107 Nev. 399, 812 P.2d 1279 (1991)	
19	SIIS v. Christensen, 106 Nev. 85, 787 P.2d 408 (1990) 10	
20 21	Smith v. Warden, 85 Nev. 83, 450 P.2d 356 (1969)75	
21	State v. Allen, 353 N.C. 504, 546 S.E. 372 (N.C.2001)	
23	State v. Bey, 548 A.2d 887 (N.J. 1998) 69	
24	State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 865 P.2d 322 (1993)	
25	State v. Mohi, 901 P.2d 991 (Utah 1995) 64	
26	State v. Ring, 200 Ariz. 267, 25 P.3d 1139 (2001) 23, 24	
27	State v. Smith, 495 A.2d 507 (N.J. Super. Ct. Law Div. 1985)	
28		
	- X -	

State v. Ward, 555 S. E. 2d 251 (N. C. 2001)
Vanisi v. State, 117 Nev. 330, 22 P. 3d. 1164 (2001) 1, 28, 30
Walker v. State, 85 Nev. 337, 343, 455 P.2d 34, 38 (1969)
Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430 (1984)
Washington v. State, 112 Nev. 1054, 921 P.2d 1253 (1996)
State Statutes & Rules:
NRS 49.095
NRS 174.035
NRS 176.355
NRS 177.055
NRS 178.415
NRS 193.165
NRS 200.010
NRS 200.030 19, 24, 25, 43
NRS 200.033 24, 43, 64, 64 - 66
NRAP 28
NRCP 5(b)
NSCR 150
Other:
7 U.S. DEP'T OF STATE, FOREIGN AFFAIRS MANUAL §423.3 17
Article 36 of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations 11 - 15, 17, 18
Blackstone's Commentaries, bk. 1, ch. 1
Brendan Riley, "Convicted Killer Dies in Bizarre Nevada Execution",

- xi -

1 2	Bruce J. Winick, Prosecutorial Peremptory Challenge Practices in Capital Cases: An Empirical Study and a Constitutional Analysis, 81 Mich. L. Rev. 1 (1982)
3	Carlos Manuel Vasquez, <i>Treaty-Based Rights and Remedies of Individuals</i> , 92 COLUM. L. REV. 1082 (1992)
4	Case Concerning the Temple of Preah Vihear (Cambodia v. Thail.), 1962 ICJ 37 (June 15) 15
6 7	Claire Cooper, <i>Foes of Death Penalty Have a Friend: Mexico</i> , SACRAMENTO BEE, June 26, 1994 17
8 9	Factory at Chorzow (Jurisdiction)(Ger. v. Pol.), 1927 P.C.I.J. (ser. A) No. 6 (July 27) 15
10 11	Frederic L. Kirgis, <i>Restitution as a Remedy in U.S. Courts for Violations of International Law</i> , 95 Am. J. Int'l L. 341 (2001) 15
12	International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights 14, 15, 43, 45, 47, 48, 54, 56
13	International Law Commission: Draft Articles on State Responsibility, 37 I.L.M. 440 (1998); U.N. GAOR, 51st
14 15 16	James R. Acker <i>et al.</i> , The Empire State Strikes Back: Examining Death- and Life- Qualification of Jurors and Sentencing Alternatives Under New York's Capital- Punishment Law, 10 Crim. Just. Pol'y Rev. 49 (1999)
17	LaGrand Case (Germany v. United States), 2001 ICJ 104
18	Laura Lafay, Virginia Ignores Outcry, THE ROANOKE TIMES, July 6, 1997 17
19 20	NIGEL RODLEY, THE TREATMENT OF PRISONERS UNDER INTERNATIONAL LAW 225-28 (1999)
21 22	Radelet; Sean Whaley, "Nevada Executes Killer," Las Vegas Review-Journal,Oct. 5, 199853
23	<i>Reid v. Jamaica</i> (No. 250/1987) 16
24 25	Report of the Human Rights Committee, GAOR, 45th Session, Supplement No. 40, Vol. II (1990), Annex IX, J
26	Richard A. Rosen, <i>Felony Murder and the Eighth Amendment Jurisprudence of Death</i> , 31 B.C.L. Rev. 1103 (1990) 20
27 28	Samuel R. Gross, <i>Update: American Public Opinion on the Death Penalty — It's Getting Personal</i> , 83 Cornell L. Rev. 1448, 1451 (1998)68

1	Velasquez Rodriguez Case (Compensatory Damages), 7 Inter-Am. Ct. H.R. (ser. C) para. 26 (1989)
2	William J. Bowers et al., A New Look at Public Opinion on Capital Punishment: What
3 4	Citizens and Legislators Prefer, 22 Am. J. Crim. L. 77 (1994)
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15 16	
10	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	

#### STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Whether the district court's determination that Vanisi was competent to proceed with collateral attack on his conviction and sentence was clearly erroneous.

2. Whether Vanisi was denied his right to consular contact under Article 36 of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations.

8
3. Whether one of the three aggravating circumstances found in this case: that *the murder occurred in the commission of or an attempt to commit robbery*, was improperly based upon the predicate felony-murder rule, upon which the state sought and obtained a first degree murder conviction, in violation of the eighth and fourteenth amendments to the united states constitution.

9
4. Whether the district court's failure to allow Vanisi to represent himself, pursuant
to Faretta v. California, resulted in a structural error amounting to "total deprivation of the right to counsel," in violation of the fifth, sixth, eighth and fourteenth amendments.

Whether the district court erred in refusing to allow trial counsel to withdraw due to irreconcilable conflict, in violation of petitioner's fifth, sixth, eighth and fourteenth amendment rights.

Whether ineffective assistance of trial counsel re: actions during attempt to
 withdraw as counsel, was in violation of petitioner's fifth, sixth, eighth and fourteenth
 amendment rights under the united states constitution.

Whether ineffective assistance of trial counsel re: failure to put on an adequate
 defense, including failure to make a closing argument during the guilt phase, was in
 violation of petitioner's fifth, sixth, eighth and fourteenth amendment rights

- 8. Whether Vanisi's death sentence is invalid under the state and federal constitutional guarantees of due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence, as well as under international law, because the Nevada capital punishment system operates in an arbitrary and capricious manner. Const. Amends. V, vi, viii & xiv; international covenant on civil and political rights, art. Vi; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.
- 22

1

2

3

4

5

Whether Vanisi's death sentence is invalid under the state and federal
constitutional guarantees of due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence, as well
as his rights under international law, because the death penalty is cruel and unusual
punishment. U.S. Const. Art. Vi, amends. Viii & xiv; international covenant on civil and
political rights, arts. Vi, vii; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.

- Whether Vanisi's conviction and sentence are invalid pursuant to the rights and protections afforded him under the international covenant on civil and political rights.
  U.s. const. Art. Vi; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.
- 28

1 11. Whether Vanisi's death sentence is invalid under the state and federal constitutional guarantees of due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence, as well as under international law, because execution by lethal injection violates the constitutional prohibition against cruel and unusual punishments. U.S. Const. Art. VI, amends. VIII & XIV; U.S. Const., art. VI; international covenant on civil and political
4 rights, art. VII.; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.

Whether Vanisi's conviction and sentence of death are invalid under the state and federal constitutional guarantees of due process, equal protection and a reliable sentence because petitioner may become incompetent to be executed. U.S. Const. Amends. V, VI, VIII & XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.

<sup>8</sup> 13. Whether petitioner's conviction and sentence violate the constitutional guarantees
of due process of law, equal protection of the laws and a reliable sentence and
international law because petitioner's capital trial and review on direct appeal were
conducted before state judicial officers whose tenure in office was not during good
behavior but whose tenure was dependent on popular election. U.S. Const. Art. VI,
amends. VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21; international covenant
on civil and political rights art. XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.

14. Whether Vanisi's death sentence is invalid under the state and federal constitutional guarantees of due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence, as well as under international law, because of the risk that the irreparable punishment of execution will be applied to innocent persons. U.S. Const. Art. VI, amends. VIII & XIV;
15 U.S. Const., art. VI; international covenant on civil and political rights, art. VII.; Nev. Const. Art. I, §§ 3, 6, and 8; art. Iv, § 21.

17 15. Whether the eighth and fourteenth amendments to the united states constitution forbid that the courts or the executive allow the execution of Vanisi because his rehabilitation as an offender demonstrates that his execution would fail to serve the underlying goals of the capital sanction.

Whether the eighth and fourteenth amendments to the united states constitution forbid that the courts or the executive allow the execution of Vanisi because his execution would be wanton, arbitrary infliction of pain, unacceptable under current American standards of human decency, and because the taking of life itself is cruel and unusual punishment and would violate international law.

23

Whether Nevada's death penalty scheme allows district attorneys to select capital
 defendants arbitrarily, inconsistently, and discriminatorily, in violation of the fifth, sixth
 and fourteenth amendments to the U.S. constitution.

26 18. Whether Nevada's death penalty statutes are unconstitutional insofar as they permit a death-qualified jury to determine a capital defendant's guilt or innocence.

- XV -

- 27
- 28

1 19. Whether Vanisi's sentence of death was imposed under the influence of passion, prejudice, or arbitrary factor(s), in violation of the fifth, sixth, eighth and fourteenth amendments to the U.S. constitution.

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