3 SIAOSI VANISI, 4 Appellant, 5 FILED 6 v. SEP 262008 No. 50607 THE STATE OF NEVADA, 7 8 Respondent. 9 10 RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF SCOTT W. EDWARDS RICHARD A. GAMMICK 11 729 Evans Avenue **District Attorney** Reno, Nevada 89512 12 TERRENCE P. McCARTHY THOMAS L. QUALLS **Appellate Deputy** 13 230 East Liberty Street P.O. Box 30083 Reno, Nevada 89501 Reno, Nevada 89520-3083 14 ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

#### **

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

<u>Law</u>, section 14.1 at pp. 416-418 (2d Ed. 2003)(discussing five common law variants of malice, including ill-will and extreme negligence as evincing a malignant heart).

Whether the narrowing process starts at the notion of a felonious homicide, or with the common law definition of murder, is it clear that Nevada's statutory scheme as a whole serves to eliminate all but the most severe from those killings that warrant consideration of the death penalty.

Had the *McConnell* Court begun its analysis with a generic homicide, the unlawful killing of a person by another person, the Court would have recognized that our statutory scheme does indeed genuinely narrow the class of killers. By beginning the analysis with the definition of first-degree murder, this Court came up with the wrong question and, necessarily, the wrong answer. That is the primary reason why *McConnell* should be revisited. Upon revisiting the analysis, this Court should recognize that the statutory scheme as a whole constitutionally distinguishes between those who commit unlawful homicides.

The next difficulty with *McConnell* is that the Court improperly analyzed the question of whether the statutory scheme "genuinely" narrows the class of murderers, by asking instead whether the aggravating circumstance "sufficiently" excludes an adequate number of killers from the death penalty. *See* 120 Nev. at 1067. Mathematics is an incorrect analysis. Objectivity is correct. Sufficient is wrong. Genuine is correct. If Nevada suffered a spate of murders by hired killers, each with prior violent felonies, and each tortured and robbed their victim, and each victim was a peace officer, the mere fact that none of them would be excluded from the death penalty by our statutes is not grounds to rule that there is something wrong with our statutes. Instead, it is grounds to celebrate the wisdom of the legislature.

If the legislature had undertaken the analysis which this Court employed – had explicitly designed the statutes with a goal toward excluding a certain number of murderers (and thus including a certain number of murderers), instead of basing the scheme on legitimate distinctions, the State has no doubt that this Court would look askance at such a scheme. If the legislature

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

undertook to define those eligible for the death penalty not by a reasoned moral evaluation but upon the notion that a certain number of killers should be included and certain number of killers excluded from the death penalty, this Court would seize on such a debate as evidence that the entire scheme is irrational by valuing the number included or excluded over the attempt to morally, qualitatively, define which murderers warrant the ultimate sanction and which do not. Despite that, it appears that is what this Court did in *McConnell*. Instead of asking whether the aggravating circumstances "genuinely" or objectively narrowed the class of killers, this Court asked if the scheme "sufficiently" narrowed the class of murderers. In doing so, this Court stated that the Supreme Court's decision in Lowenfield gave rise to question of whether the narrowing was "sufficient." 120 Nev. at 1065. That, contends the State, is not the question suggested by Lowenfield and when this Court asked the wrong question, it necessarily came up with the wrong answer. The proper question, as announced in *Lowenfield*, is whether the scheme "genuinely" narrows the class of killers. That, in turn, is generally recognized as calling for a determination of whether the narrowing factors are objective. See e.g., Metheny v. State, 759 A.2d 1088, 1109 (Md. 2000); State v. Fry, 126 P.3d 516 (N.M. 2005). The legislature acts constitutionally if the aggravating circumstance does not apply to every murder (of every degree) and if it is objective. Arave v. Creech, 507 U.S. 463, 113 S.Ct. 1534 (1993). By rephrasing the analysis to ask if the narrowing function was "sufficient," to determine if it excluded a sufficient number of murderers, this Court has announced an unworkable standard that advanced inappropriate policy. This Court ought to revisit *McConnell* without the analysis asking if the aggravating circumstance excludes enough killers, and instead asking if the aggravating circumstance necessarily includes all killers.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup>If the proper question does indeed ask if the scheme excludes an adequate number of murderers, the State must ask "How many?" What percentage of killers should be excluded from the death penalty in order for the statutory scheme to pass scrutiny? Should that percentage be static or dynamic? If in some given year we have only a small number of murders, but each is of such a nature that the death penalty is available, how should we select which ones will be excluded? Because those questions cannot give rise to a legally sound answer, this Court should conclude that it posed the wrong question in *McConnell*.

10

14

13

16

15

17 18

19

20 21

22

2324

25

26

Indeed, the Court seems to have already recognized in denying rehearing in *McConnell* that the felony murder aggravator is not universally available as it does not apply to all murderers. That ought to be the end of the analysis.

There is a final flaw in the McConnell analysis. In the original decision, this Court seems to have discounted the requirement that the felony-murder aggravator be accompanied by certain mental states. In denying rehearing, this Court appears to have recognized that by virtue of the mens rea requirement, the aggravator "is narrower than felony murder, which in Nevada requires only the intent to commit the underlying felony." 121 Nev. \_\_\_\_, 107 P.3d 1287, 1289 (2005). The Court then indicated that "notwithstanding" that narrowing function, "it is quite arguable" that the aggravating circumstance fails to narrow the class of murderers subject to the death penalty.<sup>7</sup> Because this Court recognized that the mens rea operates to further narrow the class, perhaps the mention of this additional flaw is unnecessary. Nevertheless, the State would point out the statutory scheme, by requiring an additional mens rea for the felony murder aggravator, has objectively excluded some first-degree murderers from the death penalty. Indeed, the State contends that the notion that a *mens rea* requirement is insignificant seems to fly in the face of hundreds of years of jurisprudence in this state, in the United States and indeed in every common law country. The mens rea has always been the factor that distinguished rude or impolite acts from criminal acts. Thus, if this Court indeed considered the mens rea requirement to be insignificant, the Court ought to revisit *McConnell*.

This case demonstrates the folly of the Court's adventurism in *McConnell*, both in its application and in the arguments to extend it to include all of the other aggravators that are mentioned in the definition of first-degree murder. The instant case shows how the scheme should work. If Vanisi had killed his victim but had not stolen the gun (and there were no other

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup>The State might point out that if a position is "arguable," that is grounds for submitting the dispute to this Court for resolution, but the fact that a position is "arguable" ought not to end the argument. Thus, the Court's purpose in mentioning that the propriety of our statute is "arguable" is not altogether clear.

aggravators), then he would not be subject to the death penalty. Because he committed first-degree murder, and the murder was aggravated in several ways, he was properly exposed to the death penalty.

The scheme distinguishing between those who commit a felony murder and those who commit a felony murder coupled with the intent to kill is a "genuine" distinction and this Court's analysis in *McConnell* was flawed in asking if it was a "sufficient" distinction.

Because McConnell was wrongly decided, a product of an incorrect analysis, it should be overruled.<sup>8</sup>

#### c. The Analysis of Prejudice Was Correct.

Assuming the continuing vitality of *McConnell*, there was no error in rejecting the claim because there was no prejudice. The State contends that once at least one aggravating circumstance is proven, as it was here, there number of aggravators is irrelevant. We do not instruct jurors to count aggravating circumstances. We instruct the jury to weigh those circumstances. As the district court noted, the facts available to be weighed are unchanged by the number of aggravators and so there is no reasonable likelihood of a different result based on the *McConnell* analysis.

In *Brown v. Sanders*, 546 U.S. 212, 126 S.Ct. 884 (2006), the Court indicated that the analysis of harmlessness is akin to the traditional analysis of prejudice commonly applied by Nevada trial courts in post-conviction actions. The court ruled that where the facts concerning the invalid aggravating circumstance are nevertheless available to be considered when weighing a valid aggravating circumstance, then the invalidation of the aggravating circumstance ought to be seen as non-prejudicial. Here, the invalid aggravator involved robbery. The nature of the robbery

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup>The opinion in *McConnell* had an additional logical flaw. The Court stated that the *mens rea* requirement in the aggravator does little more that state the minimal constitutional requirement. 120 Nev. at 1067. But the Court went on and apparently held that because it barely meets the minimal constitutional requirement, it is unconstitutional. If the aggravator meets the minimum constitutional requirement, then it is not unconstitutional.

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

1

2

involved the theft of the service weapon of a uniformed police officer. Those facts were still available to the jury even after eliminating the aggravating circumstance of robbery. The facts concerning the invalid aggravator (robbery) could nevertheless be given aggravating weight under the rubric of a valid aggravator (killing and mutilating an officer). The ferocity of the attack, and its attendant mutilation, rendered Sergeant Sullivan unable to resist the theft of his service weapon. The theft was part and parcel of the killing and the killing included the theft. The theft, the killing and the mutilation were all temporally and geographically contemporaneous and so the jury, in considering what weight to assign to the valid aggravators, could certainly have considered the facts and circumstances of those valid aggravators as they included the theft and the officer's inability to resist the theft. The court also notes that the aggravator involving the killing of a police officer required the State to prove that the defendant knew or should have known that the victim was a police officer performing his duties. The theft of the service weapon certainly is available as part of the proof that Vanisi knew he was killing a police officer who was performing his duties. Thus, under the analysis of Brown v. Sanders, this Court should find that there is no likelihood of a different result by the retroactive application of McConnell. Whether the nature of the crime amounted to one aggravating circumstance or a dozen, the facts and the attending weight remain unchanged. Therefore, the claim concerning the retroactive application of *McConnell* was properly denied.

#### 4. The District Court Properly Declined to Overrule the Supreme Court.

Vanisi next argues that the trial court erred in denying his motion for self-representation. That claim was considered and rejected on direct appeal and thus is barred under the "law of the case." See Hall v. State, 91 Nev. 314, 535 P.2d. 797 (1975).

Vanisi points out that the doctrine is not absolute. That is correct. As this Court has noted, a court of last resort has limited discretion to revisit a legal issue. *Pellegrini v. State*, 117 Nev. 860, 885, 34 P.3d 519, 535-36 (2001). However, the district court is not the court of last resort. The district court has no authority to overrule the Supreme Court. Therefore, this Court should find

no error in the refusal of the district court to assume appellate jurisdiction over the Supreme Court. Had the claim been based on new facts, a different result might arise. As it is, however, the claim was based solely on the record.

If Vanisi is asking this Court to reconsider in the first instance, this Court should decline that opportunity. First, none of the facts have changed since this Court first ruled. Thus, the doctrine of the "law of the case" remains undisturbed. This Court has recognized that an intervening change in the law could lead to disregarding the law of the case. Hsu v. County of Clark, \_\_\_\_ Nev. \_\_\_\_, 173 P.3d 724 (2007). There has indeed by an intervening change, but the result is that the district court has greater, not lesser, authority to deny self-representation to a defendant. See Indiana v. Edwards, \_\_\_\_ U.S. \_\_\_\_, 128 S. Ct. 2379 (2008). In that case, the High Court distinguished a prior line of cases and ruled that a defendant may be competent to stand trial and yet the trial court may still deny his right to represent himself because he is incompetent to represent himself. If that change has any effect at all, it is to assure this Court that the trial court did not err in denying Vanisi's request to represent himself. Indeed in the direct appeal, this Court took pains to rule that the ability of the accused to defend himself was not a factor. Those comments have now been undercut by Edwards, supra. Accordingly, that portion of the judgment concerning the request for self-representation should be affirmed.

### 5. The District Court Did Not Err in Denying Relief Based on an Alleged Conflict of Interest.

Related to the claim regarding self-representation is the claim that counsel should have been allowed to withdraw due to a "conflict of interest." There was no conflict as that term is generally understood. Instead, it appear that the only conflict concerned the ethical limitations. *See* Testimony of Mike Specchio at 11 AA 2196. As indicated in the opening brief, Vanisi proposed to defend based on his own perjured testimony and would not allow any defense based on the notion that he had participated in the murder of Sgt. Sullivan. As trial counsel put it, the alleged conflict was "a conflict between our ethical obligation and what Mr. Vanisi wanted to do." 11 AA

2096. No one alleged or proved an actual conflict, that counsel was representing competing interests. Thus, we are not considering a conflict of interest at all. Instead, the underlying question is whether the defendant in a criminal action has some constitutional right to a lawyer who will present a defense based on alleged facts that the defendant has admitted are untrue.

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